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ALL SOLICITATION ADDENDUMS MUST BE ACKNOWLEDGED BY THE OFFEROR PRIOR TO THE HOUR
AND DATE SPECIFIED IN THE SOLICITATION (AS AMENDED) FOR RECEIPT OF PROPOSALS. FAILURE
TO ACKNOWLEDGE AN ADDENDUM MAY BE CAUSE TO REJECT THE PROPOSAL.
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DESCRIPTION OF ADDENDUM.
Due Date for Proposals Extended From: 11/13/2017
To: 11/28/2017
Following ltems For Clarification.
Following Items & Changes to Bid Documents.
Following Drawings - Include ltems A & B.
Following Specifications - Include items A & B.
Drawings.
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THERE ARE NO OTHER CHANGES.

THE SOLICITATION PROVISION ENTITLED "SOLICITATION ADDENDUMS" IS APPLICABLE TO THIS
ADDENDUM. THE CHANGES SET FORTH BELOW ARE HEREBY INCORPORATED INTO THE
ABOVE-CITED SOLICITATION. THE HOUR AND DATE SPECIFIED FOR RECEIPT OF PROPOSALS IS
EXTENDED.
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RFP No. 1681788
PRE-RELEASE CENTER DIETARY FACILITIES IMPROVENMENTS
Addendum No. 2

TO THE CONTRACT DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE REFERENCED
PROJECT, DATED OCTOBER 03, 2017, AS PREPARED BY GRIMM & PARKER
ARCHITECTS, 11720 BELTSVILLE DRIVE, SUITE 600, CALVERTON, MARYLAND
20705.

This Addendum includes changes and clarifications to the Contract Documents. The
information includes the following:

DESCRIPTION OF ADDENDUM

A. Following items are for clarification propose and do not change bid
documents.

Item No.1 QUESTION: The specifications call out for Acoustical Fabric Panels (AFP-
1), but we do not see them called out on the finish plan/floor plan. Please
advise if these are required, and if so, in what room?

RESPONSE: No Acoustic Fabric Panels are required.

ftem No. 2 QUESTION: The specifications also call for fire resistive materials. Other
than through-wall firestopping, we do not see these materials called for
anywhere else. Are the steel trusses scheduled o receive spray-on
fireproofing? Please advise
RESPONSE: No spray-on fireproofing is required.

item No.3 QUESTION: The spec secfion “Visual Display Boards” call for MB-1/TB-1
markerboard and tackboards. We do not see these on floor plan/furniture
plan. Are these required by GC? If so, what is the quantity of each?
RESPONSE: No new Visual Display Boards are required, however
existing bulletin boards and display boards are existing fo be
relocated. Refer to the contract drawings.

ltem No. 4 QUESTION: The specifications include a section for “Tubular Skylights”.
We assume this is not a part of this contract, as none are shown.
RESPONSE: Tubular skylights known as Solatubes are shown on Sheet
A-102. 4 are required. -

ltem No.5 QUESTION: We believe some of the demo key notes on sheet AD-101
are reversed. For instance note 2 should be note 3 pertaining to wall and
door demoiition. We have figured out the demolition, but these notes may
want o be looked at to avoid confusion.
RESPONSE: This was clarified in Addendum 1.
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PRE-RELEASE CENTER DIETARY FACILITIES IMPROVEMENTS
Addendum No. 2

Item No.8 QUESTION: Is the GC providing furniture/end user equipment?
Furthermore, can a complete OFCI matrix be provided for anything the
owner is providing/contractor installing?

RESPONSE: Sheet IF-101 shows the furniture plan. In general, all
lightly dashed loose furniture is owner provided and installed. All
fixed items such as countertop, and all kitchen equipment is
contractor provided and installed. ‘

item No.7 QUESTION: We assume third party inspections are paid for by the owner,
and GC responsible for coordinating, and documenting such inspections.
Please clarify.
RESPONSE: Refer to the Specifications regarding 3™ party
inspections. Some are paid by the owner and some are paid by the
contractor.

ltem No. 8 QUESTION: Specification 051200 Structural Steel Framing part 1.3.C
requires the fabricator and erector for this project to be AISC
certified. Please consider deleting the AISC requirement for this
project. We do not believe the structural steel scope on this project
warrants the use of an AISC certified firm, and if may be very difficult for
get pricing from AISC certified steel contractors considering the size of the
addition. Per 1.4 of the specification there is an alternate option for
meeting the qualifications on the fabrication side, but nothing pertaining to
erection. '
RESPONSE: The AISC requirement shall remain.

Item No.9 QUESTION: The allowances section of Attachment T Cost Breakdown
Form is aiready filled out with the amount of $80,000 in the Allowances
space; per 012100 Allowances specification, Allowances 1 and 2 amount
to $140,000. Please advise as to which dollar amount is correct and
revise the forms/specifications accordingly.

RESPONSE: The allowance total amount is $90,000.00.
Section 01 2100 — 3.3 A.2 should be revised to: This allowance shall
be a lump sum of $50,000.00

item No. 10 QUESTION: Please reference 015721 Indoor Air Quality Controls; 1.5.3
of the section states that the contractor shall perform a building flush-out
and IAQ testing. 3.3 of the same section states that a IAQ testing shall be.
done first, and only if that fails shall the building be flushed out. Please
clarify what will be required. Also, please confirm Ventilation Effectiveness
Testing, per 3.4, will be a requirement of this project.

RESPONSE: IAQ testing shall be done first. If the test fails, a
building flush-out will be required. Ventilation Effectiveness Testing
will be required.
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Item No. 11

Item No. 12

Item No. 13

Item No. 14

item No. 15
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Addendum No. 2

QUESTION: Please reference 1.4 of 015000 Temporary Facilities and
Controls; being that this is a facility that remains in operation during
construction please confirm that usage costs for utilities will be paid for by
owner.

RESPONSE: The Contractor can use water for construction
purposes from an exterior hose bib at no charge. The Contractor
can use electricity from the existing facility for basic construction
lighting and to run tools at no charge, but not for any temporary
heating or cooling that may be required. It will be the Contractor’s
responsibly to make proper temporary connections for the electric
use. The Contractor shall provide and pay for temporary portable
toilet facilities. Contractor shall not use any toilet facilities in the
buiiding.

QUESTION: Please confirm that any hazardous materials, if encountered
during demolition, will be abated by owner. if hazardous materials
abatement is a GC responsibility, please provide Hazmat Report.
RESPONSE: We don’t believe there are any hazardous materials in
the project. If encountered, they will be abated by the owner.

QUESTION: 1.4.C of 072127 Foamed-In-Place Insulation specification
specifies ABAA inspections and reports, while 3.2.B of 014100 The Air
Barrier System Specifications provides an additional list of testing and
inspections for the air barrier system. Please confirm that the owner does
intend for the contractor to include pricing for two entities to inspect the air
barrier, in addition to the owner's third-party observer.

RESPONSE: The Foamed-In-Place Insulation contractor shall be
ABBA certified and be required to submit their ABBA inspection and
report for the Architect’s review at each stage. The second part of
the question is unclear. Section 014100 doesn’t exist. The Fluid
Applied Membrane Air Barrier section is 07 2710. 3.6 provides a
breakdown of the inspection requirements.

QUESTION: Please clarify who is responsible for water leakage test per
3 4.A of 084313 Aluminum-Framed Storefronts specification. 3.4.A.2
seems to imply that the owner will perform the initial testing and that if this
testing fails that.contractor wouid retest, though it is not clear.
RESPONSE: All water leakage testing shall be done by the
contractor

QUESTION: 3.3.C. of 329905 mentibns mixing soil amendments and
fertilizer with topsoil at “rates indicated”; we are unable to find indicated

Addendum No. 2 3 RFP No. 1081788



Item No. 16_

Item No. 17

[tem No. 18

Item No. 19

Item No. 20

RFP No. 1081788
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Addendum No. 2

rates for soil amendments. Please indicate rates of soil amendments and
fertilizers that are to be mixed into topsoil. ,

RESPONSE: Refer to 1.4.C. The contractor shall furnish a soil
analysis. If the requirements of the specifications cannot be met,
amendments shall be recommended by said testing agency to
provide a satisfactory topsoil. -

QUESTION: Reference Section 221316 page 3 paragraphs A & B.
Paragraph A specifies copper DWV for soil, waste and vent pipe and B
specifies no-hub cast iron for vent. Does this mean the above-ground
waste is to be DWV copper? And the vent piping not over top the kitchen
is supposed to be No hub Cast iron? Please clarify. Typically no hub cast
iron is used on above ground waste piping and DWV copper for the vent

"and drain piping. Would this be acceptable? Or, is it acceptable to use

only no-hub aboveground for waste and vent?
RESPONSE: This is clarified in SECTION 22 13 16 - SANITARY
WASTE AND VENT PIPING

QUESTION: Please confirm that engineered transition assemblies, per
2.4.J of 084313 Aluminum-Framed Storefronts specification, is not
applicable to this project. The storefront sections and elevations on the
drawings do not reference or detail engineered transition assemblies.
RESPONSE: An engineered transition assembly is required at all
exterior storefront frames.

QUESTION: Item 1 in Addendum 1 Clarification document states that
drawings were revised to show demolition of existing grease interceptor,
however, demolition of grease interceptor is not noted on revised C-1B,
instead the location of the new grease interceptor is shown on the
demolition plan. Please clearly indicate the. demolition work as it pertains
to the existing grease interceptor and associated piping.

RESPONSE: The existing grease interceptor is to be demolished and
a new one is to be installed per the contract documents. ‘

QUESTION: Specification 015000 2.1.A calls for 8 high temporary
fencing; C-2A plan and C-2B detail shows 6’ high temporary
fencing. Please advise as to which is correct.

RESPONSE: The Temporary Fence shall be 6’ tall.

QUESTION: Please advise as to where 062000 Finish Carpentry is
applicable to this project.

RESPONSE; 062000 Finish Carpentry is not applicable to this
project. ' :
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ltem No. 21

ltem No. 22

Item No. 23

item No. 24

ltem No. 25

Item No. 26
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QUESTION: C-3C Structural Notes section, Testing and Inspection ltem
#2 states that the contractors testing agency shoulid perform testing and
inspections; this is contrary to the specifications in which the owner will
hire a testing agency. Please confirm the owner will be hiring the testing
agency.

RESPONSE: The owner will be hiring the testing agency for
structural testing.

QUESTION: Flooring removal in existing kitchen not called out on A7/AD-
101; please indicated what the flooring finish is, its extents, and confirm it
is to be demolished.

RESPONSE: The entire existing Kitchen is Quarry Tile and itis to be
demolished.

QUESTION: Note 4 and 5 on A-200 Elevation Notes states that all
existing rowlock sills are to be repointed and all existing (and new) exterior
brick should be cleaned. Please confirm it is referring to the existing brick
for the elevations of the renovated portion of the building only and not the
whole building. If all rowlock sills and brick must be repointed / cleaned
for the whole building then we would require elevations of the entire facility
in order to ascertain the scope.

RESPONSE: See revised notes 4 and 5 on Sheet A-200.

QUESTION: Reference A-311; please provide architectural detail for
protective cover at exterior wall so that the required flashing is detailed.
RESPONSE: See detail 3 added to Sheet A-311.

QUESTION: Reference 4/A-350; please clearly differentiate between rigid
and spray foam insulation when using same hatching pattern for both;
spray foam is hatched correctly on 6/A-350, but hatched incorrectly on 1
and 4/A-350 so that you cannot tell the difference between what is rigid
and spray foam on 4/A-350.

RESPONSE: Detail 1 and Detail 6 are to use spray foam insulation in
the wall cavity. Detail 4 calls out the location of spray foam
insulation behind the metal panel.

QUESTION: Base in Resilient Terrazzo areas is called out as RST, which
is the same finish-material caliout as in the VCT and rubber flooring areas; -
can you confirm that the base specified in 2.2 of 096500 is to be used in
resilient terrazzo spaces?

RESPONSE: Yes. Confirmed.
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Item No. 27 QUESTION: Reference Drawing Note 3 on E-003; please clarify whether

Item No.

ifem No.

Item No.

Item No.

Item No.

28

29

30

31

32

the owner or contractor will be responsible for tele/data cabling, per 1.5.2
of 011000 summary specification cabling is by GC, however this note is
unclear and cabling requirements would need to be provided for bidding
purposes if contractor is to include this scope. Also, please confirm 1.5.1
and 1.5.2 in 011000 Summary specification should be adhered o when
assessing the contractor’s role in regards to security and telecom on this
particular project.

RESPONSE: Provide conduits only to the portables as shown on E-
003. No data cabling or equipment is required in the portable under
this contract.

QUESTION: 1.3.A of 024119 Selective Demolition indicates that existing
dining room light fixtures are to be salvaged and turned over to the owner,
while per the hatching E-101 shows them to be demolished with no
reference to salvaging on the demolition plan. Please advise as to which
direction is correct.

RESPONSE: See General Note 4 added to Sheet E-101.

QUESTION: Are the ductbanks and feeders show on E-003 all to adhere
to the direct buried conduit detail provided on E-7017?
RESPONSE: Yes. The detail is typical for all exterior raceways.

QUESTION: Attachment G has been asked to be filled out by (5) major
trade contractors. However, Attachment G given with the RFP is
specifically asking questions ONLY about kitchen equipment contractor.

" Are there other Attachment G's that can be sent for each trade?
RESPONSE: A stated in Tab # 1.7 of the Evaluation Criteria, to
provide a resume and qualification for the sub-contractors. The
Commercial kitchen Sub-Contractor will be given the highest
consideration base on Attachment (G).

QUESTION: Attachment H is Similar Project Information Form. It states to
fill out for projects of contract values of $7 million or more. Any reason for
the $7 million figure? PWC feels the size of this project to be half of that
amount, or even lower, give or take. Was this a typo?

RESPONSE: Revise to $5 million or less.

QUESTION: 1 believe specs in multiple places call for sealed bids.
However, other places in RFP talks of binders with tabs. Binders aren't
necessarily “sealed”, per se. Are we allowed to submit binders with tabs,
OR are we required to bound the bid with tabs and seal them in an
envelope?

RESPONSE: The Cost Breakdown must be submitted as attachment
(T) part of the Sealed RFP Package, not a separate sealed bid.

Addendum No. 2 6 RFP No. 1081788
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Item No. 35

Item No. 36

Item No. 37
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QUESTION: Ref:Alt.2 Portable Classroom. Does the existing portable
classroom need to be moved in order to build the new addition?
RESPONSE: Yes

QUESTION: Please confirm if we can use the light duty asphalt detalil
10/C-3C on drawing C-3B for the proposed parking lot. If not please
provide us a detail.

RESPONSE: The light duty asphalt section shown for detail 6/C-3B
shall only be used for the basketball court paving. The on-site
regular duty asphalt section shown for detail 7/C-3B (shown on
addendum 1) shall be used for the paving within the parking lot.

QUESTION: Please provide us with a specification and detail for the patio
pavers. Drawing C-3A specifies “Patio Pavers see arch

drawings”. However, there are no pavers shown anywhere on the
architecture drawings.

RESPONSE: This area has been revised to scored concrete. See
sheet C-3A.

QUESTION: RFP Attachment G question 3 requires the Sub-Contractor
to submit a letter from the Kitchen Equipment and Refrigeration
manufacturer. The sub-contractor may not know what manufacturer will
be used until after the bid. Is it acceptable for the sub-contractor to submit
the manufacturer letter after the general contractor has been selected?
RESPONSE: Yes

QUESTION: RFP Section D Tab 1.7 requests attachment G for each sub-
contractor. Please confirm attachment G is for Commercial Kitchen sub-
contractors only.

RESPONSE: A stated in Tab # 1.7 of the Evaluation Crijteria, to
provide a resume and qualification for the sub-contractors. The
.Commercial Kitchen Sub-Contractor will be given the highest
consideration base on Attachment (G).

B. Following items may impact/change bid documents.

[tem No. 38

Classrooms permit.

The new portable that is 24’ x 54’ shall be permitted, purchased and
installed by the contractor. The feundations for the portabie shall
also be designed, permitted and installed by the confractor. The
stairs and landings are designed such that the new portable shall be
installed at the same height as the existing portable. See revised
Civil Sheets C-3C and C-3D for further clarification.

Addendum No. 2 ‘ 7 RFP No. 1081788
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Item No. 41

Item No. 42

Item No. 43

ltem No. 44
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QUESTION: Can you please provide spec on the outdoor pavers in the
patio area. Forgive me if that was specified, but | did not see called out
anywhere in the documents.

RESPONSE: The outdoor pavers are being revised in Addendum #2
to scored concrete. See sheet C-3A.

QUESTION: Please confirm the owner will be responsible for all festing
listed in 3.7 of 321216 Hot-Mixed Asphalt Paving, with the exception of the
Ground Penetrating Radar testing, which is clearly defined as a contractor
responsibility. Also, in regard to the GPR testing, please confirm this is a
requirement on the project.

" RESPONSE: The owner will hire the testing and inspection firm for
all tesfing within this section except GPR, which is the contractors
responsibility. GPR of the in-situ installed hot mix asphalt paving is a
requirement of this project.

QUESTION: 3.10.A.1 of 329500 Trees Shrubs and Ground Covers calls
for a two-year maintenance period; 3.10.A.7 refers to a one year
maintenance period. Please advise as to which is correct.

RESPONSE: A two-year maintenance period is required.

QUESTION: C-3A Legend states to see Architectural Drawings for patio
pavers; no information in regard to the pavers is contained on the
architectural drawings. Please provide specification and sections cuts
including subbase layers for the patio paver system.

RESPONSE: The pavers have been removed from the project. This
area will be scored concrete.

QUESTION: C5/A1-02 calls for steel angle framing around roof drains,
with a note stating “see structural drawings”; S101 Roof Framing Plan
Note 3 states that frames are needed for openings over 1’ x 1'; the
approximate opening for the roof drain wili be 1" x 1". P-701 roof drain
detail does not show angles; in light of the conflicting details and the note
on the structural drawings, please advise as to if angles will be required at
openings for roof drains.

RESPONSE: In Note 2 for Detail F/S202, we state to provide angle
frames at all roof drains.

QUESTION: Structural plans do not show metal decking infills at locations
of existing roof drains to be demolished since the drain locations change

Addendum No. 2 8 _ " RFP No. 1081788
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during reroofing. Please advise as to if there is any specific detail that
should be adhered to for these infills. ‘
RESPONSE: See metal deck infill details H/S202, JiS202, and K/5202
in the revised sheet $202.

QUESTION: Please provide reflected ceiling plan so that ceiling heights
and definitive extents of gypsum bulkheads can be ascertained.
RESPONSE: Sheet A103 was added.

QUESTION: Please confirm as is implied by Addendum 1 new basketbail
goal details, that existing basketball goal is to be demolished. Drawings
are unclear, it would appear the existing basketball goal would need to be
demolished but no_such removal is noted on C-1B.

RESPONSE: The existing basketball goals are to be removed in their
entirety and new goals shall be installed as shown. . |

QUESTION: 035416 Hydraulic Cement Underlayment specification,
provided in Addendum 1, indicates application will be required in varied
thicknesses based on elevation of slab after demolition of floor

materials. In trying to-determine the slab elevation, we reviewed G/5-202
which shows a 2.5” depression from the existing slab to the new slab; this
is above the 1 ¥ maximum thickness the product data for the specified
product Ardex V 1200 recommends. Another source of confusion is tied
to the fact that this G/S-202 section cut is in an area where the demoalition
drawings call for VCT demolition, so we are unsure why the depression
would be that thick to begin with; additional detfails including B/S301 and
K/S201 do not show a depression. As mentioned in a previous RFI
question, we are also aware per our site visit thaf there is existing quarry
tile flooring in the kitchen even though it is not mentioned on the
demolition drawings, which may be where the slab depression actually is
located. Regardless, there has to be a clear delineation of the different
floor finishes in the existing facility and the associated slab elevations at
those floor finishes. Otherwise, there is no way to bid this scope
accurately with the information provided. On top of that, if there is an area
where a slab depression exists as shown on G/S-202, the design team
should consider a topping slab since the specified Ardex product is not
recommended for this thickness. Please clarify the scope of work for
leveling of the existing concrete slab at different floor finishes and the -
location of those finishes.

RESPONSE: See revised detail G/5202.

QUESTION: Per Addendum 1, Owner is requiring a temporary U and O
permit for portables 135 days after start of Phase 2.1.A; per C-2A, our
temporary construction entrance is right on top of the wood deck and ramp
for the existing portable that is relocated. Please advise as to how the

Addendum No. 2 9 RFP No. 1081788
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portables are to be turned over, yet our construction access maintained for

the rest of the project. The contractor will need a construction entrance

~ well after Phase 2.1A-is complete, and especially for work in Phase 2.1B.

RESPONSE: The deck to the existing relocated portable has been
moved to the other side to be used as a common deck for both
portables. This will allow for the construction access to remain
between the relocated portable and the new building addition.

C. Following drawings include items A&B

[tem No. 1

Item No. 2

Item No. 3.

[tem No. 4

Item No. 5
ltem No. 6

Item No. 7

Item No. 8

Addendum Nao. 2 | 10 REP No. 1081788

SHEET E-101 ELECTRICAL FLOOR PLANS DEMOLITION

ADD General Note 4. During demolition, the Contractor shall
carefully remove the dining room lights and turn them over to the
Owner. Any lights the Owner decides they do not want shall be
disposed of by the Contractor. '

SHEET A001 PHASING PLAN
REVISED PHASING NOTES

SHEET A103 REFLECTED CEILING PLAN
ADD SHEET

SHEET A200 ELEVATIONS
REVISED ELEVATION NOTES

SHEET A311 SECTIONS
ADD DETAIL 3

SHEET C-1B — DEMOLITION PLAN
REVISE Added demolition of the existing basketbal! post.

SHEET C-3A — SITE PLAN

REVISE Revised legend reference for patio scoring and added scoring
and note in patio area. Revised portables, sidewalk, ramp, stairs and
landings and added notes.

SHEET C-3C PORTABLE PLAN AND NOTES
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Item No. 10

Item No. 11

Item No. 12

Item No. 13
Item No. 14
Item No. 15
Item No. 16
D. Follo

wing Specifications include items A&B

Item No. 1

Item No. 2
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REVISE Revised detail, schedule, added submiittal notes, and revised
testing and inspection note #2.

SHEET C-3D PORTABLE DETAILS
REVISE Added typical wood stair detail, revised typical wood walkway
framing detail and revised note.

SHEET C-4A — GRADING AND SWM PLAN

REVISE Revised legend reference for patio scoring and added scoring
and note in patio area. Revised portables, sidewalk, ramp, stairs and
landings and added notes and revised spot elevations. Revised entrance
spot elevations. '

SHEET C-4B- DETALED GRADING PLAN
REVISE Remove patio legend reference.

SHEET C-6 — SIGNAGE, STRIPING & FENCING PLAN

REVISE Revised legend reference for patio scoring and added scoring
and note in patio area. Revised portables, sidewalk, ramp, stairs and
landings and added notes. Added 2 fire lane signs and revised gate
location.

SHEET L-2.1 ROW TREE PROTECTION PLAN
ADD New sheet.

SHEET L-2.2 ROW TREE PROTECTION PLAN
ADD New sheet.

SHEET S 202 Typical Details
REVISE Section G, Details H, J, & K

SHEET TS Title Sheet
ADD New Sheet

REVISE SECTION 22 13 16 — SANITARY WASTE AND VENT PIPING

Paragraph B header shall read: “Above-ground, soil, and waste and vent
piping shall be the following:”

REVISE SECTION 32 95 00 — TREES, SHRUBS, AND
GROUNDCOVERS

329500-8-Paragraph D7- Revised maintenance period from 1 year to 2
years.

Addendum No. 2 11 RFP No. 1081788
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End of Addendum No. 2 Description
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Montgomery County Maryland PRE-RELEASE DIETARY CENTER

SECTION 32 9500 -

TREES, SHRUBS, AND GROUNDCOVERS

PART 1- GENERAL:

1.1 DESCRIPTION OF WORK:

A, Description of work: Work of this section includes, but is not limited to, the following:
1. Trees, shrubs, and groundcovers.
2 Backfill mixfures.
3. Mulching and planting accessories.
4 Warranty and maintenance.

1.2 RELATED WORK.:

A. Coordinate with the earthwork and appropriate site specifications for proper scheduling
for the performance of the work specified herein
1. Section 31 20 00: Earthmoving /
2. Section 32 90 00: Tree Conservation
3. Section 32 93 05: Lawns and Grasses

1.3 QUALITY ASSURANCE:

A. Installer shall have not less than 5 years documented successful experience in installation
of work similar to work of this Project and be a member of one of the following
organizations:

1. Landscape Contractors Association.
2. American Nursery and Landscape Association.
3. Maryland Nurserymen’s Association.

1.4 SUBMITTALS:

A Product Data:
1. Submit manufacturer’s data and source data for materials including soils.
2. Submit location of product mamufacture and harvest of primary raw materials.

B. Schedules:

i. Submit schedule listing plants to be provided.
C. Samples:
1. Submit to the Landscape Architect for review, one-pound (1lb.) samples
packaged in plastic bags of mulch, topsoil, and soil mixes for all planting areas.
2. Provide samples typical of material used in Project with same color texture, and

organic composition.
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F.

Test Reports:

1 Submit soil analysis of both soil mixes and topsoil, stating pH, nutrient levels
(N.P.K), % organic matter, and mechanical analysis prepared by qualified soil
testing lab along with samples. Test and Reports shall be paid for by the

Contractor.
Qualification Data: :
1. Submit installer qualifications verifying years of experience; include list of

completed projects having similar scope of work identified by name, location,
date, reference names and phone numbers. -

Warranty and Maintenance:
1. Submit written warranty and maintenance agreement for materials as specified.

1.5 WARRANTY AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT:

A.

All plants shall be guaranteed to remain alive and healthy for two (2) full years after
initial acceptance.

Inspection and Initial Acceptance:

1. Initial acceptance shall be defined as approval, by the Landscape Architect, of the
complete landscape installation immediately after planting.

2. Contractor shall notify Landscape Architect, in writing, of project completion
and request an inspection within two weeks.

3. If the plant material and workmanship are satisfactory, the Landscape Architect

will give written notice to that effect. This will constitute the Certificate of
Acceptance, and the warranty period will begin from that date.

4. Care of the plant material shall begin immediately after each plant item is
satisfactorily installed and shall continue through the entire life of the contract.
During this time, the Contractor shall do all work which is pecessary to establish
and keep the plants alive and healthy.

1.6 FINAL INSPECTION:

A.

C.

The Contractor will conduct a final Inspection with the Landscape Architect at the end of
the two-year period. It will be the Contractors responsibility to notify the Landscape
Architect within two weeks of the anticipated meeting.

Any material that is 25% dead or more shall be considered dead and must be replaced at

no charge. A tree shall be considered dead when the main leader has died backy or there is
25% of the crown dead.

Deciduous material will be guaranteed to break dormancy if planted in dormant season.

1.7 REPLACEMENTS AND CONDITIONS:

A,

Replacements will be made during the next appropriate planting period.
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B. The Contractor shall be responsible for a one-time replacement.
C. Replacements will be of the same size and species as the original with no additiopal soil
amendments to be used.
- D The Contractor will not be responsible for plant material that has been damaged due to
vandalism, fire, relocation or other activities beyond the contractor’s control.
E. Plant losses due to abnormal weather conditions such as floods, excessive wind, or severe

freezing will not be the responsibility of the contractor.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS:

2.1 TREES, SHRUBS AND GROUNDCOVERS:

A,

B.

Greneral: Provide products grown and harvested within 500 miles of project site.

Topsoil: New topsoil shall be good friable, natural loam topsoil, containing no subsoil
material, free of sticks, stones, roots, weeds, debris or other extraneous matter, and shall
be obtained from an area that has never been stripped and shall have an acidity range of
pH 5.0 to pHL 7.0.

Soil Mix: Soil mix shall be 50% topsoil, 25% sand and 25% leaf mulch organic matter.

Fertilizer: Fertilizer for planting areas and tree pits shall be approximately 5-10-5, and
organically derived.

Muich: Mulch for groundcover areas shall be dark brown, shredded hardwood bark, or
approved equal.
Stakes (if needed): Stakes shall be 2” x 2 x 8’ wood timbers.

Guy Wires and Tumnbuckles (if needed); Guy wire shall be No. 14 gage galvanized steel
wire: turmbuckles shall be galvanized, 1/2° dia. bolt size with closed eyes to receive guy
wires.

Rubber Hose (if needed): Rubber hose shall be % black corded hose.

Plant Material

1. Plant List The Contractor shall be responsible for furnishing and installing all
plant material shown on the drawings. The plant list is provided for convenience
only. The plant quantities indicated on the plans take precedence over plant lists.
Contractor shall verify all quantities to his own satisfaction prior to bidding. Any
discrepancies shall be reported to the Landscape Architect immediately.

2. Nomenclature: The names of plants required under this contract conform to
those given in Hortus III, 1979 Edition.
3. The Contractor shall have investigated the sources of supply and satisfied

himself that he can supply all of the plants specified on the plant list in the size,
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variety and quality noted prior to submitting his bid. Failure to take this
precaution will not relieve the suceessful bidder from his responsibility for
furnishing and Installing all the plant material in strict accordance with the
contract requirements and without additional expense to the owner. Substitutions
will not be permitted. If proof is submitted that any plant specified is not
obtainable, a proposal will be considered for use of nearest equivalent size or
variety with an equitable adjustment of contract price. Such proof shall be
substantiated and submitted in writing to the Landscape Architect.

4. All plants shall comply with the recommendations and requirements of ANSI
760.1-1996 “American Standard for Nursery Stock”.
5. Rejection: Any materials and/or work may be rejected if in the opinion of the

Landscape Architect such does not meet the requirements of the specifications.
All rejected materials shall be removed from the site by the Contractor within 45
hours.

6. - Size: All trees end shrubs shall be measwred when their branches are in their
normal position. Height and spread dimensions specified refer to the main body
of the plant and not from branch or root tip to tip. The determining measurement
for trees shall be caliper, which: shall be taken six (6”) inches above the ground
for trees up to four (4”) inches in caliper and twelve (12) inches above the
ground for larger sizes. All plants shall conform to the measurements specified
in the plant lists except that plants larger than specified may be used if approved
by the Landscape Architect Use of such plants shall not increase the contract
price. If larger plants are approved, the size of the root ball shall be increased in

- proportion to the size of the plant.

7. All “matched” species shall be from the same nursery source and nursery lot

location.

PART 3 —-EXECUTION:

3.1

32

33

EXAMINATION OF SITES:

A. The Contfractor shall examine the site and ali conditions thereon, and take into
consideration all such conditions that may affect his work. Start of work indicates
acceptance of conditions and full responsibility for work of this section.

PERSONNEL:

A The work shall be performed by personnel familiar with the planting procedures under
the supervision of qualified foremen.

PLANT INSPECTION:

A, All plants shall be subject to inspection by the Landscape Architect for species, size,
color, and quality. If so desired, a sample for each plant variety (tree, shrub,
groundcover) shall be planted as specified. Once approved, these samples shall be tagged
by the Contractor and used as standards of comparison for the remainder of the Work.
Plant inspection shall be arranged by the Contractor at least one week prior to planting,

RFFP #1081788 32 95 00-4 Trees Shrubs and Ground Covers




Montgomery County Maryland PRE-RELEASE DIETARY CENTER

B.

Photographs of any material that is coming from suppliers outside the immediate project
area may be submitted as typical samples for pre-approval.

3.4 PROTECTION AND REPAIR:

A.

" All portions of the property, which have been disturbed or damaged due to, or incidental

to, work performed under this contract shall be repaired and restored to its original
condition to the satisfaction of the Landscape Architect.

The Contractor shall fully and satisfactorily maintain and protect all work until

completion and acceptance of all work or portions thereof and shall repair or replace, at
his expense, any work damaged during that period, to the satisfaction of the Landscape
Architect.

35 CLEANUP:

A

At all times during the progress of the work, the contractor shall maintain the site in an
orderly condition. Streets and pavements shall be kept clean. Materials and equipment
for planting work shall be limited to the quantity required for the work. All rejected
materials shall be immediately removed from the site.

3.6 TIMING:

A.

Planting work shall not be started until final grades have been established and approved
by the Landscape Architect.

Under no conditions shall any work be done if weather or soil conditions are not
satisfactory. -

The season for planting trees, shrubs and groundeover shall be March 15 to June 1 and
September 15 to November 15, unless otherwise approved by the Landscape Architect.
Any out of season planting will be fully guaranteed by the Cantractor.

3.7 DIGGING AND HANDLING PLANT MATERIAL

A,

No plants shall be dug or delivered to the site until the required inspections have been
made and the plants approved.

Balled and burlapped (B&B) plants shell be dug with firm, natural balls of earth, of
diameter and sufficient depth to include the fibrous and feeding roots. No plants will be
accepted if the ball is cracked or broken before or during planting operations.

Roots or balls of all plants shall be adequately protected at all times from sun and/or
drying winds. Balled and burlapped plants that cannot be planted immediately upon
delivery or collection from the site shall be set on the ground and protected with soil,
wet peat or other acceptable material. Plants collected on site and planted immediately
after digging need not be burlapped.
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D.

E.

No plant shall be bound with wire or rope at any time so as to damage the bark or break
branches.

Plants shall be pruned only as directed by the Landscape Architect.

3.8 PLANTING BEDS:

A.

C.

D.

Tree locations shall be staked by the Contractor and approved by the Landscape
Architect before planting; all planting areas shall be excavated to depths and dimensions
indicated; all subsoil shall be removed from the site.

The sides and bottom of all planting beds shall be scarified.

Planting beds shall be backfilled with specified soil mix and hand compacted.

Fertilizer shall be mixed thoroughly into the full-depth.of all planting areas.

39 PLANTING:

A

Setting Plants: ‘ :

1. Unless otherwise specified, all plants shall be planted in pits, centered and set
on undistarbed soil to such depth that 1/8 of the rootball is above grade. Plants
shall be planted upright and faced to give the best appearance or relationship to
adjacent structures.

2, No burlap shall be pulled out from under balls. Platforms, wire and surplus
binding from top and sides of the ball shall be removed. All broken or frayed
roots shall be cut off cleanly.

3. When trees are delivered in wire baskets, the wire baskets shall be cut down the
side of each mesh and pecled away from the rootball and removed in entirety.
4. Topsoil shall be placed and compacted carefully to avoid injury to roots and to

fill ail voids. When the hole is nearly filled, water shall be added as necessary
and allowed to soak in. The hole shall be filled to finished grade and a shallow
saucer shall be formed around each plant by placing a ridge of soil around the
edge of each pit. After the ground settles, additional soil shall be filled into the
pit to reach the level of the finished grade.

5. After all backfill bas been placed, water thoroughly on the interior of the tree
saucer until it is filled, even if it is raining. ‘

Plant Locations: Plants shall be located as shown on the confract drawings, from
dimenstons if shown, and by scaling if not dimensioned. All locations are to be approved
by the Landscape Architect before any excavation is started.

Obstructions: All utilities shall be located in the field before any digging is begun. Any
disruption or damage to utility lines shall be the responsibility of the Contractor.

Pruning: Only dead and broken branches shall be removed from trees unless otherwise
directed by the Landscape Architect. Plant material shall be pruned in accordance with

~ standard horticultural practice to preserve the natural character of the plant. Only clean

sharp tools shall be used.
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E.

Mulching: All ground plant areas shall be mulched with a 2-inch layer of shredded
hardwood bark within the entire area of the planting bed. Mulch shall be placed
within 48 hours of planting,

Clean-Up: No debris shall be left on-site. Excavated materials shail be removed or
disposed of per Landscape Architect’s instructions.

3.10 MAINTENANCE OF PLANT MATERIALS:

A.

DESCRIPTTON:

L. Maintenance shall begin immediately after each plant is instalied. The
landscape contractor shall provide all materials, labor and equipment to
complete all landscape maintenance work for the two-year warranty
period.

STANDARDS:

1. All landscape maintenance services shall be performed by trained
personnel using current, acceptable horticultural practices.

2. All work shall be performed in a manner, which maintains the original
intent of the landscape design. -

3. All chemical applications shall be performed in accordance with current
county, state and federal laws, utilizing EPA-approved materials and
methods of application. These applications shall be performed under the
supervision of a Licensed Certified applicator.

WORKMANSHIP:

L. - During landscape maintenance operations, all areas shall be kept neat and
clean. Precautions shall be taken to avoid damage to existing structures.
All work shail be preformed in a safe manner fo the operators, the
occupants and pedestrians.

2. Upon completion of maintenance operations, all debris and waste materials
shall be cleaned up and removed from the site, unless provisions have been
granted by the owner to utilize on-site trash receptacles.

3. Any damage to the site caused by the Landscape Contractor sbail be
repaired by the Landscape Contractor without charge to the owner.

TREES, SHRUBS & GROUNDCOVERS:

L. Pruning: All ornamental trees, shrubs and groundcover shall be pruned when
appropriate to remove dead or damaged branches, develop the natural form
of the plant and create the effect intended by the Landscape Architect.

2. Weeding: All beds shall be weeded on a continuous basis throughout the
growing season to maintain a neat appearance at all times.

3. Insect and Disease Control: The Landscape Contractor shall be responsible
for monitoring the site conditions on each visit to determine if any insect or
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disease problems exist. Immediate measures shall be taken to eliminate any
disease or infestation problems. :

Trash Removal: The Landscape Contractor shall remove trash from all
groundcover beds with each visit.

. Winter Clean Up: Project shall receive a general clean up once during each

of the winter months (January, February, March) to include: Removing all
trash and unwanted debris, turning mulch where necessary, and inspection
of grounds. ‘

Watering: The Landscape Contractor shall be responsible for watering all
plant material as necessary throughout the growing season.

Fertilizing: A slow release fertilizer of 5-10-5 shall be applied to all plant
material at the end of the 2 yr. maintenance period.

Miscellaneous:

a. Mulch areas of all planting beds and tree pits shall be maintained at
a2” level.

b. Plants shall be reset to proper grade or upright position as necessary.
Stakes and guys shall also be adjusted as necessary.

c. The Contractor shall prepare maintepance guidelines for use by the
Owner.

d. All stakes and guys shall be removed by the Contractor at the end of
two-year.

e. Cut back tops of perennials. Dead tops of all perennials shall be cut

back in February and the tops removed. Care shall be taken not to
damage plants.

3.11 ACCEPTANCE:

A.

Final acceptance of the work by the Owner will be contingent on Contractor’s
compliance, with warranty and replacement requirements and Landscape Architect’s
approval. The Landscape Architect will notify the Owner within one week of final
ingpection. '

END OF SECTION
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